o U WN B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
July 23, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton. Alternate: Stuart Bennett.

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Paul Plante, Frank Tenney, Claudia Mucklow, Carolyn Jeppsen, David Jeppsen, Pete
Demick, Joseph Buswell, Alexa Weitzman.

Posted Agenda:

7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)

7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM DRB-25-98-CU- Jeppsen —public hearing - Replacement of two cabins for one cabin at
39 Town Way

7:45 PM DRB-25-25-SK- Rectified Whiskey/Aurora Farms LLC — sketch review - Storage of
barrels of bourbon in existing barn at 4458 Lake Road

8:10 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: dratt DRB Minutes, July 9, 2025

8:15 PM Review & Approve Sketch Letter for: DRB 23-83-SK Davis

8:25 PM Review & Approve Draft Decisions (if any)

8:30 PM Deliberations on closed applications (if any)

9:00 PM Adjourn

Call to Order/ changes to agenda:
Chair, Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. No changes to the agenda.

Public Comment:
None.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, July 9, 2025:
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for July 9, 2025, as written. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Charles Russell abstained.

DRB-25-98-CU- Jeppsen —public hearing - Replacement of two cabins for one cabin at 39 Town
Way:

Russell swore in Carolyn Jeppsen, David Jeppsen, and Pete Demick. Russell asked the
Development Review Board (DRB) if any member had any ex parte communications or conflicts of
interest to declare. Brandon Tieso reported ex parte communications. Tieso said he was at Jeppsen’s
camp two weeks prior looking at a dock. The application was brought up by Jeppsen. Tieso told Jeppsen
that he is a member of the DRB and conversation regarding the application ceased.

Carolyn Jeppsen said that she and David are seeking to replace two unplumbed sleeping cabins
with a single sleeping cabin equipped with an accessible bathroom. This would require removal of two
cedar trees. Russell asked if tree removal is necessary due to the intended foundation. Carolyn Jeppsen
said it’s necessary for both the foundation and roof. Gerald Bouchard suggested that if the cedars are



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

page 2 Development Review Board 07/23/2025

removed, the stumps remain to prevent erosion. Lewis asked about replacing the cedars. Carolyn
Jeppsen would like to defer to the Tree Warden on where to plant replacement trees.

Russell referred to the former Zoning Administrator (Aaron Brown) finding that the Jeppsen lot
is located within a Flood Hazard Overlay District. Carolyn Jeppsen responded that she and David went
through the Shoreland Protection application process, they have no flood insurance, and theoretically all
of Thompson’s Point is located within the Flood Hazard Overlay District.

Russell referred to mapping within Brown’s Staff Report which indicates that two-thirds of the
Jeppsen’s lot is located within the Flood Hazard Overlay District. Russell asked if there is agreement
with Brown’s findings and if so, then Section 5.6 in Land Use Regulations (LURs) must be followed.

Russell asked for input on whether Section 5.6 indicates no new structures as the LURs are
ambiguous. Tieso spoke to the application seeking to increase conformance. David Jeppsen said that
requiring Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) elevation certificate would be
discriminatory. Carolyn agreed and spoke to equity in approval. In response, Alexa Lewis said the
application is her initial experience with the Flood Hazard Overlay District, and how the DRB is
working through interpretation of Section 5.6. Lewis then read from LURs. Carolyn Jeppsen emphasized
that the project is a renovation that will not increase square footage and that will reduce non-
conformance. Russell read from LURs that suggest the FEMA elevation certificate could be issued by a
registered surveyor or an engineer.

Carolyn Jeppsen asked if the existing sleeping cabins are in the Flood Hazard Overlay District,
does that mean there is no possibility of renovation. Russell said that he does interpret LURSs to imply
such.

Russell proposed the hearing be continued so the applicants can familiarize themselves with
Section 5.6 and consult with a registered surveyor or an engineer.

Frank Tenney asked if the lot is on Town septic. Carolyn Jeppsen confirmed. Tenney pointed out
the applicants are proposing to add a bathroom. Carolyn Jeppsen said this has been considered. Septic
capacity is based on bedrooms not bathrooms. The proposal reduces the number of bedrooms. Tenney
also noted opinion that adding plumbing creates an accessary structure intended as living quarters,
which is not permitted. Russell said he had the same question regarding whether plumbing triggers
accessory structure versus sleeping accessory. Paton noted that mapping indicates that plumbing is
connected to the sleeping cabins.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to continue DRB-25-98-CU-
Jeppsen to August 6, 2025, at 7:05pm. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

DRB-25-25-SK- Rectified Whiskey/Aurora Farms LLC — sketch review - Storage of barrels of
bourbon in existing barn at 4458 Lake Road:

Russell asked the DRB if any member had any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest
to declare. Paton recused himself as an abutter. Stuart Bennett served as an alternate.

Joseph Buswell, co-owner of Rectified Whiskey, explained the proposal is for the storage and
aging of bourbon within an existing barn structure at Aurora Farms. The existing barn has a room which
meets 2-hour fire rated criteria where the barrels of bourbon would be stored. Rectified Whiskey is
seeking to obtain a federal license for storage of spirits. Buswell said licensure and storage are current
purposes.

Russell said that the former Zoning Administrator’s Staff Report pointed out that the project does
not align with uses outlined in LURs for the Rural District. However, there are provisions in Section 2.3
that would allow, if a similar use could be determined. Russell asked if adaptive reuse would be an
option based on the age of the existing barn. Buswell was not certain of the age but did not believe it met
the criteria.

Bennett asked about ownership of the bourbon. Buswell confirmed ownership once in storage.
Bennett then asked if the bourbon arrives and leaves in a barrel. Buswell said a processing licensure
would be required to move the product out of the barrels.



97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143

page 3 Development Review Board 07/23/2025

Bennett acknowledged that Rectified Whiskey is attempting to create a brand by association with
Aurora Farms and Charlotte and asked about the larger intent. Buswell agreed with future potential.
Tieso questioned if future intent falls under the DRB’s purview. Lewis felt it was relevant and
questioned if it would fall under on-farm business. Lewis said she spoke with someone at the Agency of
Agriculture regarding such and suggested Buswell explore this further.

Bennett asked about the proposed timeframe for storage. Buswell responded with an estimate of
six months after obtaining approval.

Russell redirected the conversation back to a similar use in the Rural District and said the closest
he came was commercial composting or stockpiling of raw materials and finished product. Bennett said
it compares to the regulation of cannabis. Russell said the security required for cannabis is rigorous.
Buswell said the Federal Government requires the use of certain locks on the barrels.

Lewis questioned if an Ability to Serve is needed from Charlotte Fire and Rescue. Buswell said
that do not enter signage is posted in the event of a fire and that there is a water source for installation of
a sprinkler system if necessary.

Bouchard asked about projected volume. Buswell said 4 barrels to a pallet with capacity for 10
pallets. Tieso asked how long the bourbon is aged for. Buswell said 1-2 years. Tenney asked about any
environmental hazards in the event of a spill. In response, Buswell spoke to maximum allowable
quantities and the barrels being exempt from such.

Russell again redirected the conversation back to a similar use in the Rural District. Lewis
reiterated her suggestion that it could be considered an on-farm business. Tieso asked if Aurora Farm is
in any way associated with Rectified Whiskey. Buswell said personal connection only. Bennett
suggested Buswell consult with an attorney.

Tieso stated that he was comfortable comparing the proposal to composting. Nate Bareham,
Town Administrator, suggested that it might be comparable to agriculture sales and services. Buswell
spoke to his experience with Act 250 and how distilled spirits do not meet criteria for agricultural
exemption under such. Russell said agriculture sales and service would be used as a similar use, not to
say Rectified Whiskey is an agricultural use.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to continue DRB-25-25-SK-
Rectified Whiskey/Aurora Farms LLC to August 6, 2025, at 7:30pm. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion
carried.

Review & Approve Sketch Letter for: DRB 23-83-SK Davis:
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the Sketch Letter
for: DRB 23-83-SK Davis, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Review & Approve Draft Decisions (if any):
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the Draft Decision
for: DRB 25-034-CU/SP O’Farrell-Sleeper, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Deliberations on closed applications (if any):
None.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to adjourn the meeting.
VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:13pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted.:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary




